#### **DRAFT**

# Minutes of the meeting of the WAVERLEY LOCAL COMMITTEE

held at 1.30 pm on 12 December 2014 at Godalming Baptist Church.

# **Surrey County Council Members:**

- \* Mrs Pat Frost (Chairman)
- \* Mr David Harmer (Vice-Chairman)
- \* Mrs Nikki Barton
- \* Mr Steve Cosser
- \* Ms Denise Le Gal
- \* Mr Peter Martin
- \* Mr David Munro
- \* Mr Alan Young
- \* Mrs Victoria Young

### **Borough / District Members:**

- \* Cllr Brian Adams
- \* Cllr Maurice Byham
- \* Cllr Elizabeth Cable
- \* Cllr Carole Cockburn
- \* Cllr Brian Ellis
  - Cllr Nicholas Holder
- Cllr Robert Knowles
  - Cllr Julia Potts
  - Cllr Jane Thomson

### 49/14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]

Apologies for absence were received from Mr N Holder, Ms J Potts and Ms J Thomson.

### 50/14 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING [Item 2]

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2014 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

### 51/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]

Mr P Martin declared a pecuniary interest in Item 13 on the grounds that he is Chairman of Governors of St Catherine's School, Bramley; he left the meeting during the Committee's discussion on the proposed zebra crossing in Station Road, Bramley which is to be funded by the school.

### 52/14 PETITIONS [Item 4]

<sup>\*</sup> In attendance

Petitions were received as follows:

• Mr Simon Cross presented a petition on behalf of residents of Stream Farm Close, Farnham asking the County Council to replace the single white lines at the entrance to Stream Farm Close with double yellow lines. The petitioners asked the Committee to note their concerns that parked vehicles on the south side of the Close in the vicinity of its junction with the A287 force vehicles leaving the Close to move across to the right-hand side of the road where they risk colliding with vehicles entering. There are also problems with visibility at night. It was pointed out that there is space for safe parking further into the Close.

Mr D Munro, as local County Councillor, supported the inclusion of this location in the next parking review and advised that residents should ensure that their support of published proposals is registered during the period of formal advertisement. The Chairman confirmed that the residents' request will be considered in the next parking review and that she would seek confirmation of the timing.

 A petition was received via Mrs V Leake of Haslemere requesting the County Council to look at introducing Siemens SafeZone in Haslemere to promote safer roads and reduce casualties in the town.

The Chairman indicated that a response would be considered by the Committee at its next meeting.

• Mr Len Davis of Frensham Parish Council presented a petition signed by local residents requesting the County Council to suspend the first 50 yards of the Rural Clearway imposed on Bacon Lane, Frensham, starting from that end of the clearway adjacent to the A287 on the Common side only, pending re-instatement of the former car park previously accessed from within that section of Bacon Lane. The rural clearway had been supported locally in the belief that this measure would be linked to the restoration of the car-park and residents are concerned that the existence of the clearway may now prevent this.

The Chairman indicated that a response would be considered by the Committee at its next meeting.

#### 53/14 FORMAL PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 5]

The text of formal public questions received and of the responses provided is attached at **Annex 1**.

By way of a supplementary statement to question 5, the following was read to the Committee on behalf of Mr Sean Ellis:

I am very disappointed with the written answer supplied. The intent of my original question was to allow me to calculate the expected return on investment, so I specifically asked for concrete financial figures. The answer contains none of the information I asked for.

Mr M Few, Surrey County Council Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, replied that, in view of the fluctuating state of occupancy at the six residential homes included in the current consultation, the Council had been reluctant to supply financial information. If the implied question related to the future return on the site, the response would be that no valuation is available as there is no current plan to sell it.

### 54/14 MEMBER QUESTIONS [Item 6]

There were no member questions.

# 55/14 UPDATED RESPONSE TO PETITION: PROVISION OF HIGH SPEED BROADBAND, FISHER LANE LOCALITY, CHIDDINGFOLD [Item 7]

[Mr D Harmer took the chair.]

Mr P Martin reminded the Committee of the extent of the County Council's contribution to making fast broadband speeds available to premises in Surrey which would have been excluded from the commercial delivery programme. The Council's contract with BT Openreach allows for completion by the end of the March quarter of 2015; the Council will consider how to balance any remaining funds with the action needed to address the position of those premises without an appropriate connection or with slow speeds. The County Council had requested a report at the end of March 2015 which might delay the date of a further report to the Local Committee in response to the original petition. The County Council is not permitted to intervene in the commercially provided area to ensure adequate coverage for all premises, but pressure is maintained at the highest level to promote this.

[Mrs P Frost returned to the chair.]

**Resolved** to note the update provided.

#### Reason

The Committee had requested an update on progress.

# 56/14 RESPONSE TO PETITION: EWHURST ROAD, CRANLEIGH (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 8]

**Resolved** to agree the response provided.

#### Reason

The Committee is required to respond to petitions.

# 57/14 RESPONSE TO PETITION: A283 CHIDDINGFOLD (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 9]

Mrs W Lockwood, who had presented the original petition, was invited by the Chairman to respond to the report. The petitioners felt that the matters raised – most importantly the evidence from elsewhere as to how the costs for average speed cameras could be covered – had not been addressed. Recent

discussions with neighbouring speedwatch groups had suggested ways in which a shared scheme could be more cost-effective. It was also felt that the Committee had, in the absence of an investigation into potential revenue streams or of a timetable for developing a policy, been presented with insufficient information to make a decision. The petitioners were concerned that the existing policy on fixed cameras focuses only on accident black spots and ignores the other implications of excessive speed set out in their presentation. Mrs Lockwood reflected the wish of residents for speeding laws to be enforced, but nevertheless noted evidence that average speed cameras are felt by the public to be fairer than fixed equipment.

The Area Highways Manager hoped that a policy would be developed during 2015, pointing out that extensive consultation with all stakeholders would be required. He stressed the importance of maintaining public support and the need to investigate revenue funding in view of the likelihood that a low number of violations would generate little income.

Members who expressed a view were divided between, on the one hand, an expectation that average speed cameras would provide an opportunity to promote road safety for all users and, on the other, a concern that motorists may be unduly impacted upon by an unpopular measure.

Resolved to agree the response provided.

#### Reason

The Committee is required to respond to petitions.

# 58/14 A287 (THE BOURNE/MILLBRIDGE): SPEED LIMIT (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 10]

Mr D Jones, who had presented the original petition, thanked the Committee for its response.

**Resolved** to note the update provided.

#### Reason

The Committee had requested an update on progress.

# 59/14 A287 (FRENSHAM): SPEED MANAGEMENT (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 11]

It was noted that the Local Transport Plan Task Group recommended the installation of a single Vehicle Activated Sign to reinforce speed limits on the approach to Millbridge (Item 13). It was agreed that further discussion with residents and the divisional County Councillor should take place to determine the most appropriate location for this sign.

**Resolved** to note the update provided and to delegate resolution of the local detail of the proposed action to the Area Highways Manager in discussion with the relevant County Councillor and residents.

#### Reason

The Committee had requested a response to residents' concerns.

# 60/14 UPDATE ON INTEGRATED TRANSPORT SCHEME PROGRAMME FOR 2014/15 (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 12]

The Committee discussed the appropriate speed limit for the section of the A283 Petworth Road, Milford between Cherry Tree roundabout and Rodborough School. Members were mindful of the officers' recommendation that the existing 40mph limit should remain, but noted the wish of local residents and Witley Parish Council that the limit should be reduced to 30mph, thereby creating consistency along this stretch of road. It was noted that a resolution not to adopt the officers' recommendation would, as set out in the County Council's policy on **Setting Local Speed Limits**, need to be submitted for decision to the Cabinet Member responsible for road safety. Mr P Martin proposed that recommendation (iv) be amended to seek agreement that the speed limit on the section in question should be reduced to 30mph; having been seconded by Mr S Cosser, this was agreed by ten votes to two, with three abstentions.

There was no decision to change the Committee's approach to allocating its "Lengthsman" funding, i.e. through applications from interested Parish/Town Councils and other appropriate agencies. Some members, however, continue to feel that communities covered by local councils which do not wish to participate are disadvantaged by this approach.

The Area Highways Manager felt confident that the outstanding schemes in the programme would be delivered in the fourth quarter of the year. In relation to the Marshall Road cycle scheme (Godalming) it was reported that the legal agreement had been finalised and that signing was imminent.

The Committee discussed progress against the planned maintenance works programme and concern was expressed that some schemes had been removed or delayed without discussion with relevant members. The Chairman indicated that she would raise these concerns with the Assistant Director for Highways and Transport. There were also concerns about the standard to which pot-holes were repaired, delays in attending to surface-dressing schemes which had failed and the risks of failure in resurfacing roads where long-term drainage problems had not been addressed. The Highways Service was, however, congratulated on the quality of resurfacing work recently completed on the A286 and A287.

#### Resolved to:

- (i) Note progress on the programme of minor highway works for 2014/15.
- (ii) Authorise the introduction of a 40mph speed limit on the B2128 at Ellens Green between Pollingfold Bridge and the existing terminal signs 160m west of the junction with Somersbury Lane (currently 50mph).

(iii) Authorise the introduction of a 40mph speed limit on the A287 Gong Hill along

that section of the road which currently has a 50mph limit between The Bourne and Millbridge.

(iv) Agree that the current speed limit of 40mph along the A283 Petworth Road between Cherry Tree roundabout and Rodborough School, Milford should be reduced to 30mph and to refer the introduction of this limit, which is lower than that recommended by officers, to the Cabinet Member responsible for road safety.

#### Reason

The Committee was asked to note progress the programme of work for 2014/15 and

agree arrangements to enable the introduction of reduced speed limits. In relation to (iv) the Committee voted not to proceed with the recommendation that the speed limit should remain unchanged: as set out in the County Council's policy on **Setting Local Speed Limits** the matter must be submitted for decision to the Cabinet Member responsible for road safety.

### 61/14 HIGHWAYS BUDGETS FOR 2015/16 (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 13]

The Chairman explained the approach taken by the Local Transport Plan Task Group in recommending the published programme in view of the uncertainty about the amount of funding available in 2015/16. It was confirmed that the group would meet again if the opportunity arose to supplement the scheme when the budget is finalised.

The Committee discussed arrangements for allocating the £160,000 to be set aside for general drainage, footway or carriageway maintenance work (at 1.6 in the published report), i.e. whether to divide this equally between the four task group areas or to retain the fund as a single budget for allocation by the Area Highways Manager in response to local need. It was proposed from the chair and agreed by eleven votes to four that the fund should be managed as a single budget by the Area Highways Manager but that he should have regard to local priorities as expressed by members and take account of a wish to maintain approximate equity across the task group areas.

A correction was made to the published programme: the reference to "B3000 Puttenham Heath Road" (at its junction with the A3) should read "B3001 Elstead Road". The programme was also amended to reflect the decision at Item 11 relating to the position of the proposed Vehicle Activated Sign on the A287 at Millbridge.

Having drawn attention to his pecuniary interest (Item 3), Mr P Martin left the meeting during a discussion on the proposed zebra-crossing in Station Road, Bramley which is to be funded by St Catherine's School: it is anticipated that the scheme would be delivered as part of the County Council-funded programme.

#### Resolved to:

- (i) Agree the allocations recommended by the LTP Task Group, described in the published report and amended at the meeting to a total value of £378,000.
- (ii) Note that the LTP Task Group will convene if necessary once the Local Committee budget is known in the Spring of 2015.
- (iii) Authorise the Area Highway Manager (AHM) to progress the schemes included in the programme in consultation with local elected members and associated task groups.
- (iv) Subject to approval of recommendations (i) and (ii) consider and determine any objections submitted following the statutory advertisement of the traffic orders and notices associated with the programme of schemes, in consultation with the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman of the Local Committee and relevant local councillors.
- (v) Delegate authority to the AHM in consultation with the Chairman and Vice- Chairman and locally affected Members to amend budgets throughout the year if required to ensure the budget is allocated in a timely manner.
- (vi) Agree that the Community Enhancement Fund is devolved to each County Councillor based on an equal allocation of £5,000 per division.

#### Reason

The Committee was asked to agree 2015/16 allocations so that scheme design can start at the earliest opportunity, increasing confidence in delivery.

# 62/14 ON-STREET PARKING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION) [Item 14]

The Committee welcomed the report and noted that no decision was yet sought on allocating the funding now made available. It was suggested that re-investment of a proportion in enhanced enforcement in Farnham would contribute to the reduction of congestion and an improvement in air quality.

Officers undertook to analyse Penalty Charge Notices by street and type of contravention. It was pointed out that permit charges are set countywide.

#### Resolved to:

- (i) Note the contents of the report.
- (ii) Allocate 90% of the surplus income towards the Local Transport Plan programme in the Farnham area and 10% to be split equally in the three other task group areas.

#### Reason

Waiting and parking restrictions help to:

Improve road safety

- Increase access for emergency vehicles
- improve access to shops, facilities and businesses
- · Increase access for refuse vehicles and service vehicles
- Ease traffic congestion
- Better regulate parking

The Local Committee can contribute towards these objectives in partnership with the relevant Enforcement Team.

[The following members left the meeting: Mrs N Barton, Mr M Byham, Mrs C Cockburn, Mr R Knowles, Mrs V Young.]

# 63/14 SOUTH EAST PERMIT SCHEME: UPDATE (FOR INFORMATION) [Item 15]

An additional annex was tabled and is appended to the minutes as **Annex 2**.

Members welcomed the enhanced inspection regime and were assured that increased salary costs balance with the income received and are in line with expectations. It is difficult for officers to refuse applications for work which is claimed to be an emergency, but inspections are carried out during office hours. However, a decrease in emergency work has been observed. The principal reason for refusing applications for permits is a clash with other works.

Inspections will identify breaches of permit conditions, e.g. relating to health and safety, and check the quality and quantity of signage: it is anticipated that improved arrangements for advance signage will be implemented in the new year and efforts are made to improve with neighbouring authorities (and the Highways Agency) the co-ordination of diversionary routes.

There was some concern that the level of Fixed Penalty Notices is too low and a hope that, since these are set by government, pressure could be applied to increase these. Following two national trials, there are no plans for the further implementation of lane rental schemes.

**Resolved** to note the report.

#### Reason

The Committee had requested an update on the operation of the scheme.

[Mr B Adams and Ms D Le Gal left the meeting during this item.]

# 64/14 LOCAL COMMITTEE FORWARD PROGRAMME (FOR INFORMATION) [Item 16]

**Resolved** to note the Forward Programme for 2014/15, as outlined in Annex 1 of the report, indicating any further preferences for inclusion.

#### Reason

	Chairman
Meeting ended at: 4.40 pm	
publicise the intettings and prepare the necessary reports.	
can publicise the meetings and prepare the necessary reports.	
Members were asked to comment on the Forward Programme	e so that officers



### **ANNEX 1**

S

# LOCAL COMMITTEE (WAVERLEY)

# PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES

### **12 DECEMBER 2014**

#### 1. From Elstead Parish Council

There are on-going problems in Elstead with regards to blocked drains in areas of the village resulting in flooding and hazardous driving conditions. The problem is likely to get worse during the winter months with increased concerns regarding the icy conditions that may result.

Please could the Committee advise the best course of action for the Parish Council to take in order to resolve the problem quickly and on a long term basis in order to ensure that the roads in the village are safe.

The areas of road the Parish Council are particularly concerned about are opposite the Woolpack, on the bend by the bus stop (believed to be a blocked and broken drain) and on the triangle at the junction of Milford Road with Shackleford Road (blocked culvert)- both of these have been reported to the County Council, in the first case over 2 years ago.

#### Response

In the last year the Area Highways Team has addressed highway flooding in Elstead at Fulbrook Lane and Springhill. The maintenance engineer for Waverley will be meeting Parish Council representatives later this month to tour known drainage hotspots.

#### 2. From Ms Liz Townsend on behalf of the Cranleigh Civic Society

Is Surrey County Council still intending to establish a Sustainable Drainage Systems Approving Body (SuDS) to test, adopt and maintain sustainable drainage systems associated with all major new housing developments?

If not, please advise what measures Surrey County Council and Waverley Borough Council are planning to take to ensure the risk of damage to property and risk to life is not created by new housing built on sites which contain flood zones 2 and 3.

We ask this with specific reference to the Berkeley Homes "The Maples" proposed development to build 425 dwellings on flood prone land in Cranleigh and the Knowle Park Initiative's intentions to build 265 dwellings on an adjacent and equally flood prone site.

#### Response

The Local Committee does not comment on individual planning applications.

Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 has not been implemented yet. The government has further delayed its implementation and recently went out to consultation on an alternative to implement SuDS through the planning system. DCLG and Defra have received some 400 responses to their consultation and are still going through those prior to making a further announcement. Until such time that government commits to the implementation of Schedule 3, Surrey County Council cannot set up a Sustainable Drainage Approving Body (SAB).

The purpose of the SAB under Schedule 3 is not to assess flood risk from new development, but rather to ensure that the drainage strategy for new development adheres to a National Standards for SuDS. Under the National Planning Policy Framework, the planning authority is responsible to assess flood risk from all sources. How the individual planning authority delivers that function is down to them.

The Surrey Local Flood Risk Management Strategy, which was developed with the assistance of all 11 Surrey Boroughs and Districts, is to be published shortly. It highlights the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework with relation to flood risk. It also looks for development schemes to provide multiple benefits at a local and wider level. The strategy promotes reducing flood risk through attenuation and improving water quality, the environment and amenity, all of which are cornerstones of the Sustainable Drainage Systems.

In assessing planning applications Waverley Borough Council will follow advice in National Guidance on the matter (including the National Planning Policy Framework) and take into account the views of the Environment Agency.

#### 3. From Mr Mark Richards

I refer you to Professor David Jolley, a Consultant of Psychiatry of old age. He was appointed by a Court in the North of England (in the Midlands) for exactly the same reason that we are going through, with Cobgates in Farnham and the other care homes facing closure in Surrey. At a public meeting in Brambleton Hall on 4 December 2014, it was evident that families and relatives have the foresight to see how damaging it will be to our loved ones if they are to be moved involuntarily from one care home to another. The three citations below come from a medical Professor. This is his specialty and he says from his common experience and clinical experience in an informed review:

"It is an inescapable truism relocation is a stressful event and can precipitate problems with mental health, physical health, and even bring forth death."

(See page 12 http://www.ragenational.com/pdfs/jolley.pdf)

"Taken as a group the deaths of seven residents are mostly in keeping with the demonstrated excess mortality that occurs when older frailer people, particularly those with advanced dementia are moved from one institution to another." (See page 3 <a href="http://www.ragenational.com/pdfs/closure-facts.pdf">http://www.ragenational.com/pdfs/closure-facts.pdf</a>)

"The ill effects of involuntary transfer cannot be eradicated. For some, careful preparation under psychiatric oversight can ameliorate the risk. Such preparation cannot be achieved for those with moderate or severe dementia because the process has to build on retained knowledge, the first of which is that the home is closing." (See page 3 http://www.ragenational.com/pdfs/closure\_facts.pdf)

My question to the Local Committee is: will you please share Professor Jolley's findings with Surrey County Council's Cabinet and ask for a full published risk assessment to be provided to all the families of Cobgates' residents, as this is most distressing for all the residents and families concerned?

### Response

The website links in the question have been passed to the project team, who are currently working on an Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) which will form part of a report to the Council's Cabinet in February 2015 making recommendations about the future of the in-house homes. The EIA will assess any positive or negative impacts that have been identified as potentially resulting from all the recommendations in the report. This will include consideration of the impact on residents if any closure is recommended. A copy of the EIA will be made publicly available as soon as it is finalised, along with the wider Cabinet report.

We acknowledge that any proposed move may cause anxieties and be difficult for people, and this will be considered in the decision--making process. The EIA will identify actions required to minimise any negative impacts of proposals, which will include the use of national good practice guidance.

Should there be a decision to close the home, each individual would have an indepth assessment of their current needs carried out by their care practitioner (social worker), and this process will include the advice and views of everyone who is involved in their care and support.

#### 4. From Mr Paul Couchman on behalf of Save our Services in Surrey

Will this Waverley Local Committee agree to put it to the Surrey County Council Cabinet at the earliest opportunity that Surrey County Council should arrange a full public meeting as soon as possible regarding the closure of Surrey Care Homes, particularly as two of the care homes, Cobgates in Farnham and Longfield in Cranleigh, are in Waverley?

#### Response

As part of the consultation process a series of meetings have been offered and held for residents, family members, and other interested parties to meet with officers to discuss the consultation information and ask questions. In the case of Cobgates three meetings for groups of residents and relatives were held on 9 November. There was a day of 'drop in' sessions for anyone else with an interest in Cobgates on 20 November. In response to requests at the meetings on 9 November, an additional meeting was held on 6 December. Outside these meetings, we have made an ongoing offer of individual meetings and discussions --- with the aim of ensuring that all those directly affected have an opportunity to discuss their particular circumstances and views, and ensure all affected residents and their families have the information they need to make an informed response to the consultation.

#### 5. From Mr Sean Ellis

Given the consultation on the closure of Cobgates and five other care homes, what are the projected costings for care of elderly people in the county going forward?

Using Cobgates as an example, I would like to be able to compare the expected revenue from selling Cobgates, the cost of refurbishment, and the ongoing cost to the Council of outsourcing care to the private sector.

Another part of this calculation will be to identify what control the council has over the price of private sector care. With a new influx of residents from six care homes, this skews the supply/demand balance and would conceivably lead to price increases. As I understand it, the majority of the 15 care homes identified as suitable for outplacement are already more expensive than the current in-house provision. What is the Council's financial responsibility in this case? What guarantees do these homes provide for continuity of care and price control?

I presume that these figures should be readily to hand, as they will have been prepared as part of the due diligence process.

## Response

- a) The Council anticipates growing pressures for older people care services in the forward budget in light of demographics and new duties associated with the implementation of the Care Act 2014 which come into force in April 2015. These pressures come at a time when government funding is decreasing, resulting in all councils having to focus on preventative services to help manage demand of increasing complex needs whilst maintaining people's wellbeing and independence in the community. Refurbishment or rebuilding to the quality that the Council would wish to offer going forward to the next generation of elderly would, in the opinion of professional experts, require large sums to be invested in the existing facilities. The Council is also able to source care at the right quality standards in the independent sector.
- b) Information about the investment options considered and the costs to the Council of sourcing care in the independent sector has been circulated to Cobgates relatives as part of a supplementary information pack which will be published on the Surrey County Council website within the next few days. As no decision has been made regarding the future of Cobgates or the other homes, no decision has or principle in add regarding the future use of the site ---

- this would be considered at a later date as part of the Council's response to the consultation.
- c) The supplementary information outlines the fee guidance rates the Council uses in its negotiations with providers. It is worth noting that the Council, out of some 18300 residents under its care, places approximately 1560 residents in residential care homes with 140 in the six Council homes under consultation. In-house homes only represent approximately 9% of care home placements the Council funds --- the vast majority are in the independent sector. Should the consultation result in option A (decision is made to close the in-house homes), this would be implemented through a phased and carefully managed process, as part of which officers will actively engage with the provider market to secure alternative provision at rates agreeable to the Council.

This page is intentionally left blank



**MINUTES: ANNEX 2** 

# **Appendix 7 - Case Studies**

#### **Oxshott High Street**

The A244 is a significant artery in the Surrey highway network providing the link between the link between the A3 and M25. Part of this road forms Oxshott High Street and is part of the Ride 100 course. To carry out essential gas mains replacement, it was necessary for the road to be completely closed to traffic. Conditions were imposed that meant the works were undertaken in the summer school vacation, utilising extended hours and vacating the road totally over the weekend of the Ride 100.

Whilst the road was under closure, works by BT Openreach, Virgin Media, UK Power Networks, Sutton and East Surrey Water and our own Integrated Transportation Scheme works were instructed to take place to make best use of the closure period.

Whilst this may have been achievable under the previous Noticing regime with negotiation, the Permit Scheme gave the ability to instruct these events to happen.

#### Copsem Lane

Sutton and East Surrey Water project to renew 500 metres of fresh water main and transfer 29 properties. This road joins the Oxshott High Street. A significant part of the main laying works, which was a longitudinal open cut trench in the carriageway, was instructed to be undertaken whilst the road was closed further down for the SGN works due to the reduced traffic levels. A section of the works that was undertaken outside of the closure time resulted in significant traffic disruption.

Consequently the subsequent works of providing service connection from the new water main into properties has been instructed by an "Authority Imposed Variation" (AIV) to be undertaken in off peak periods only between 09:30 and 16:00 or over a weekend period with the carriageway cleared and returned to full use outside of these hours.

An AIV being a Direction only available to Authorities operating a Permit Scheme.



#### **Monument Hill**

A development of a new Morrison's supermarket in Weybridge had associated road relayout and utility works. The road revisions being part of a section 278 agreement.

Under the Permit Scheme, s278 works require to be carried out under an approved Permit. This enables the Street Works department to become involved in agreeing timings, durations and Conditions.

Works on Monument Hill, Weybridge were proposed by the Developer to use two way traffic signals for a period of 26 weeks. With Street Works involvement the method of works was significantly changed and the length of time the temporary signals were required reduced by around ten weeks and Conditions on manual control of the traffic signals imposed.

Prior to the Permit Scheme resource did not exist in Surrey to review s278 works in this depth.

#### **Outwood Lane**

Contractor JSM working for Abovenet Services are in the process of installing a new high speed fibre optic cable for data exchange between Croydon and Crawley.

At a certain location on the route, JSM chose to use the technique of "moling". A works method that eliminates the need to open cut the surface but can only be undertaken where there is a clear path through suitable subsoil.

The moling tool contacted a twelve inch fresh water main which burst flooding 40 properties and affecting pressure in over 2500 homes and closing the road.

The Permit for the Abovenet works has been Revoked meaning JSM no longer have permission to undertake the works and have had to make good any excavations, stop work and clear the site until meeting have been held to review the situation.